
SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION  
MEETING MINUTES 

Tuesday September 2, 2025 – 6:30 PM 
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone 

Members Present: 
Dr. Michael Klemens (Chair) 
Cathy Shyer (Vice Chair) 
Bob Riva (Regular Member) 
Allen Cockerline (Regular Member) 
Dr. Danella Schiffer (Alternate Member) 
Beth Wells (Alternate Member) – joined at 6:40pm 
 

Members Absent: 
Martin Whalen (Secretary) 
 
Staff Present: 
Abby Conroy (Land Use Director) 
Miles Todaro (Land Use Technical Specialist) 
 

Brief Items and Announcements 1 

1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum  2 

Chair Klemens called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. Chair Klemens, Vice Chair Shyer, Regular 3 

Member Riva, and Regular Member Cockerline were present and seated to vote. Alternate Member 4 

Schiffer was also present.  5 

 6 

2. Approval of the Agenda 7 

Chair Klemens asked that the following item be added to the agenda: 8 

12.a. #2025-0298 / Albert Ginouves and Amy Lake / 22 Meadow Street / Special Permit Application for 9 

Detached Apartment on Single Family Residential Lot (Section 208) / Map 54 / Lot 43-2 / DOR: 10 

09/02/2025 11 

 12 

Motion: To approve the agenda as amended 13 

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Riva 14 

Vote: 4-0-0 15 

 16 

Chair Klemens appointed Alternate Member Schiffer as a voting member. 17 

 18 

3. Minutes of July 21, 2025 19 

The Commission reviewed potential amendments to the minutes. Vice Chair Shyer had not reviewed 20 

the minutes and abstained from voting.  21 

 22 

Motion: To approve the minutes of July 21, 2025 as amended. 23 

Made by Riva, seconded by Cockerline 24 

Vote: 4-0-1, with Shyer abstaining. 25 

 26 

4. Minutes of August 4, 2025 – pending 27 

5. Minutes of August 5, 2025 – pending 28 

6. Minutes of August 12, 2025 – pending 29 

7. Minutes of August 14, 2025 – pending 30 

8. Minutes of August 18, 2025 – pending 31 

9. Minutes of August 19, 2025 – pending 32 

 33 



10. Public Comment: Public Comment is restricted to items that are neither on the agenda nor the 34 

subject of any pending Planning & Zoning Commission application or action and are limited to three 35 

minutes per person. 36 

There was no public comment.  37 

 38 

New Business 39 

11. #2025-0296 / Kenneth & Elizabeth Burdick (Parsons – Haley Ward) / 152 South Shore Road / 40 

Application for a Modification of Approved Site Plan #2025-0289 to Modify Deck in the Lake 41 

Protection Overlay District (Section 404) / Map 60 / Lot 17 / DOR:09/02/2025 42 

Chair Klemens noted that Engineer Todd Parsons had requested an administrative approval for this 43 

modification, however Chair Klemens felt a review by the Commission would be more appropriate. Mr. 44 

Parsons explained the project, as presented with a prior application, involves the demolition and 45 

reconstruction of a house, plus a new driveway and septic system. He explained this application is for a 46 

modification of the patio and balconies. Mr. Parsons presented the site plan showing the approved 47 

patio and deck location and the proposed deck design. He explained that the originally approved deck 48 

was 87.7 feet from the lake at its closest point, and the modified deck would be 82.6 feet. The 49 

approved patio was 79.4 feet from the lake, and the proposed modified patio would be 82.6 feet. 50 

Mr. Parsons added that the total square footage of the deck increases by 17 square feet, and patio 51 

increases by 35 square feet. Vice Chair Shyer asked why the patio area increased. Mr. Parsons 52 

explained that proposed patio would be farther from the lake, but would now be extended under the 53 

deck where it had not been proposed before. Alternate Member Wells joined the meeting at 6:40pm.  54 

 55 

Vice Chair Shyer noted that there is no change to the impervious surface calculations because the 56 

proposed patio and deck are pervious. She also noted that she has no problems with this change. 57 

Regular Member Cockerline expressed he was in favor of approving the application. Regular Member 58 

Riva and Alternate Member Schiffer agreed. Chair Klemens asked for more details on the Lake 59 

Protection Overlay District (LPOD) calculations. Mr. Parsons answered that impervious surface 60 

coverage in the LPOD decreased from 25.5% to 18.8%. Chair Klemens asked if this included the patio. 61 

Mr. Parsons clarified that the pervious patio was not included. Vice Chair Shyer reiterated her 62 

viewpoint expressed during the previously approved application that she would like to see 63 

homeowners on the lake doing more to reduce impervious surface coverage. Chair Klemens 64 

commented that he’s not convinced permeable pavers really work. 65 

 66 

Motion: To approve application #2025-0296 / Kenneth & Elizabeth Burdick (Parsons – Haley Ward) / 67 

152 South Shore Road / Application for a Modification of Approved Site Plan #2025-0289 to Modify 68 

Deck in the Lake Protection Overlay District (Section 404) / Map 60 / Lot 17 / 69 

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Riva 70 

Vote: 4-1-0, with Klemens voting against.  71 

 72 

Chair Klemens explained that he voted against approval because he is not convinced permeable pavers 73 

are appropriate. 74 

 75 

12. #2025-0297 / Anne Fredericks (Sansone) / 29 Morgan Lane / Site Plan Application to Construct 76 

a New Garage in the Lake Protection Overlay District (Section 404) / Map 64 / Lot 07 / DOR: 77 

09/02/2025 78 



Chair Klemens asked for the original impervious surface percent coverage on this application. LUD 79 

Conroy noted that there is a plan by Engineer Todd Parsons which has those calculations, however only 80 

portions of that plan were included in the application documents. LUD Conroy presented a letter 81 

submitted with a demolition permit for nonconforming sheds on the property. Chair Klemens asked if 82 

Ms. Fredericks has abandoned the right to reconstruct the demolished sheds. LUD Conroy explained 83 

that Ms. Fredericks indicated she would abandon her right to rebuild if her current application was 84 

approved. LUD Conroy presented the plans submitted with Ms. Fredericks’ prior Inland Wetlands and 85 

Watercourses Commission (IWWC) application. Chair Klemens asked if the proposal was less square 86 

footage than what was demolished. LUD Conroy answered that Ms. Fredericks’ calculations indicate 87 

that is true, and that impervious surface would be greatly reduced. Applicant representative Thomas 88 

Sansone commented that 4,905 square feet is set to be removed, and the proposed addition is 990 89 

square feet. He also noted that the proposed driveway is pervious. Chair Klemens asked what percent 90 

of the site is proposed impervious. LUD Conroy presented the submitted plans which listed the 91 

proposed impervious area as 16.74%, and the prior impervious are as 19.52%. Regular Member 92 

Cockerline commented that the Commission has always been of the position that a reduction in 93 

impervious surface coverage is an improvement. Alternate Member Wells expressed that she thought 94 

that if work was being done on the property, it would have to meet the 10% impervious surface 95 

maximum. LUD Conroy clarified that if it is non-conforming it is protected. Vice Chair Shyer 96 

commented that the Commission has a responsibility to be consistent. She also commented that it was 97 

difficult to prepare for a discussion on the application based on what was submitted. LUD Conroy 98 

asked what was lacking in the submitted materials. Vice Chair Shyer answered that she had difficulty 99 

understanding what impervious surface was proposed for removal. LUD Conroy showed the 100 

Commission where on the plan the proposed and removed driveways are located. Chair Klemens asked 101 

if phosphorous and nitrogen were addressed on the property. LUD Conroy noted that the property is 102 

relatively flat.  103 

 104 

Alternate Member Schiffer commented that the proposed impervious surface coverage is over the 105 

LPOD 10% maximum. She added that she doesn’t think approving applications that reduce impervious 106 

surface but are still over 10% is legitimate. Regular Member Cockerline disagreed. Vice Chair Shyer 107 

reiterated that she did not feel prepared for this discussion, and that generally she would prefer LPOD 108 

property owners make more of an effort to reduce impervious surface. LUD Conroy noted that the 109 

previous application was for the demolition and rebuild of a house, and this application is not.  110 

 111 

Vice Chair Shyer asked why there was sand at the lake edge. LUD Conroy answered that the sand area 112 

was existing from a previous owner. Vice Chair Shyer commented that it would be good for the lake if 113 

the applicant removed the sand. LUD Conroy reiterated a previous comment made by Engineer Todd 114 

Parsons that a reduction in non-conformity does not need to be substantial to obtain approval from 115 

the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA). Alternate Member Wells asked how Ms. Conroy knew the ZBA 116 

would approve it. LUD Conroy answered that on the basis of reduction in nonconformity, the ZBA has 117 

to issue an approval. 118 

 119 

Vice Chair Shyer commented that there is an opportunity for improvement with this application to be 120 

discussed with the property owner at a future meeting. Regular Member Cockerline commented that 121 

he would defer to the rest of the Commission if they feel more information is needed, but he finds the 122 

application acceptable on the basis of reduction in nonconformity. Regular Member Riva agreed with 123 

Regular Member Cockerline and Vice Chair Shyer, and added that he would be okay with tabling the 124 



application pending more information. Alternate Member Schiffer asked for clarification on the 125 

Torrington Area Health District (TAHD) approval stating no bathroom in the accessory building. Mr. 126 

Sansone commented that the second floor of the garage will be an artist’s studio, with no bathroom 127 

intended or desired. Alternate Member Schiffer agreed with tabling the application pending more 128 

information. Alternate Member Wells agreed.  129 

 130 

LUD Conroy asked for more detail on what the Commission would like to see added to the application. 131 

Vice Chair Shyer answered that she would like to discuss the existing sand on the property, the size of 132 

the proposed driveway, and native plantings. LUD Conroy noted that changes to the shoreline 133 

(regarding the sand) may require IWWC approval. Chair Klemens asked why the IWWC did not already 134 

address this. LUD Conroy clarified that the application’s scope of work is outside the upland review 135 

area and did not require IWWC approval. Chair Klemens noted that the Commission can have a 136 

conversation with the Applicant about voluntarily making improvements to benefit the Lake. Mr. 137 

Sansone noted that Ms. Fredericks would be happy to have that conversation.  138 

 139 

Motion: To table application #2025-0297 / Anne Fredericks (Sansone) / 29 Morgan Lane / Site Plan 140 

Application to Construct a New Garage in the Lake Protection Overlay District (Section 404) / Map 64 / 141 

Lot 07 / DOR: 09/02/2025 to the meeting of October 6, 2025. 142 

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Shyer 143 

Vote: 5-0-0 144 

 145 

12.a. #2025-0298 / Albert Ginouves and Amy Lake / 22 Meadow Street / Special Permit 146 

Application for Detached Apartment on Single Family Residential Lot (Section 208) / Map 54 / 147 

Lot 43-2 / DOR: 09/02/2025 148 

LUD Conroy presented the submitted application materials. She noted that TAHD approval had been 149 

obtained, and the applicant has had preliminary discussion with the Water Pollution Control Authority 150 

(WPCA). The Commission reviewed the submitted narrative. LUD Conroy commented that WPCA has 151 

begun to change their application practices recently, so she is not sure if their decision on this 152 

application (made before that change) will still stand. Alternate Member Wells asked if there was an 153 

impervious surface coverage calculation included with this application. LUD Conroy answered that the 154 

application is in the R10 Zone, which has a maximum building coverage of 10%. She clarified that there 155 

is no impervious surface coverage maximum.  156 

 157 

Motion: To schedule a public hearing on October 6, 2025 at 6:45pm via Zoom for application #2025-158 

0298 / Albert Ginouves and Amy Lake / 22 Meadow Street / Special Permit Application for Detached 159 

Apartment on Single Family Residential Lot (Section 208) / Map 54 / Lot 43-2 / 160 

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Riva 161 

Vote: 5-0-0 162 

 163 

Chair Klemens noted some concern for how close the proposed structure is to the required setback. 164 

LUD Conroy answered that the surveyor is often required to stake the foundation location.  165 

 166 

Other Business 167 

13. Discussion of Comprehensive Zoning Regulations Updates (Conroy and Klemens) – Phase 1 168 

Definitions, Tables of Dimensional Requirements, and Table of Structures and Features, as well as 169 

Miscellaneous Text Changes Reflecting Revised Definitions and Organization. 170 



LUD Conroy commented that a lot of material relevant to the Commission’s next meeting has been 171 

added to the record, so she believed the discussion of the Regulations should be tabled to give the 172 

Commission more time to review the documents.  173 

 174 

Tabled Business 175 

14. #2025-0287 / Wake Robin LLC & Ms. Serena Granbery (ARADEV LLC) / 104 & 106 Sharon Road 176 

& 53 Wells Hill Road / Special Permit for Hotel, Redevelopment of the Wake Robin Inn (Section 177 

213.5) / Map 47/ Lot 2 & 2-1 / DOR: 05/05/2025 / OH 08/05/2025 / 178 

 179 

Adjournment 180 

 181 

Motion: To adjourn the meeting at 7:40pm.  182 

Made by Cockerline, seconded by Riva.  183 

Vote: 5-0-0 184 

 185 

Respectfully Submitted, 186 

Miles Todaro 187 

Land Use Technical Specialist 188 

 189 


